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British Gas Trading Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present their Strategic Report for British Gas Trading Limited (the 'Company) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal activity

The principal activities of the Company are to buy, and subsequently sell, gas and power to its residential and business
customers. It procures the commodities required for its customers from British Gas Limited (BGL), formerly British Gas
Energy Procurement Limited (BGEPL), under a long-term contractual supply arrangement. BGL procures natural gas and -
power, via back-to-back arrangements for the Company, from the market and through bilateral contracts.

Section 172(1) Statement

General confirmation of Directors’ duties
Directors are fully aware of and understand their statutory duties under the Compames Act, 2006. The Board has a clear -

" framework for determining the matters within its remit. Day to day authority is delegated to executives and the Directors
engage with management in setting, approving and overseeing execution of the business strategy and related policies,
leveraging group frameworks and policies. The executives consider the Company’s activities, such as reviewing financial
and operational performance, business strategy, key risks, stakeholder-related matters, governance, and legal and regulatory
compliance,.and make decisions. Section 172(1) of the Act provides that each Director must ensure that they act in the way
they consider, in good faith, would most likely promote the Company’s success for the benefit of its members as a whole,
and in doing so have regard (among other matters) to section 172(1) (a) to (f) as described below.

(a) The likely consequences of any decision in the long-term
The Directors understand the Company’s business and the .evolving environment in, which it operates, including the
challenges of a highly competitive marketplace, regulatory intervention and climate change. We are active in engaging with
and influencing government, political parties and the regulator, Ofgem, to ensuie a more sustainable market. Climate change
is increasingly important to investors and customers and the Group has made a series of commitments as part of its 'People
and Planet Plan'. Further information on this including how the Group is engaging with stakeholders, helping customers to
be net zero and reducing its own emissions to reach net zero can be found on pages 28 to 37 of the Group’s Annual Report
and Accounts 2021. The Directors recognise how our operations are viewed by.different stakeholders and that some
decisions they take may not align all stakeholder interests.

/ .
The Directors took-decisions during 2021 that they believed would best promote the Company’s long-term success for the
benefit of its stakeholders as a whole. For instance, British Gas supported almost 600,000 new customers from failed
suppliers through Ofgem’s Supplier of Last Resort process and we continue to support stronger regulation. Given the
significant uncertainty arising in the markets in which the business operates including the impact of higher and more volatile
commodity prices, the Directors did not declare an interim dividend and do not recommend payment of a final dividend.

(b) The interests of the company’s employees

The Directors recognise that employees are fundamental to the future growth and success of the Company. That success
depends on looking after our employees. Our Flexible First approach to remote working is having a positive impact on our
colleagues as well as our business - from increasing colleague wellbemg and engagement, to opemng the door for career
opportunities that otherwise wouldn’t have been possible.

The Board is mindful that decisions and oversight often have to balance the differing needs of stakeholders, for example
employee safety considerations during the first half of 2021 arising from COVID-19 restrictions balanced against ensuring
continued customer product value. The decisions taken by the Board were designed to prioritise and protect the health and
safety of our employees in the face of the global public health risk.
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British Gas Trading Limited

S'trategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

.

‘(c) The need to foster the company’s business relanonshxps with suppliers, customers and others
The Directors recognise the benefits of engaging with a broad range of stakeholders and developing and delivering our
strategy depends on building and maintaining constructive relationships across them. .

The Board’s actions during 2021 have ensured that levels of customer debt were managed carefully to ensure that we were as
supportive of our customers as we could possibly be. This included freezing direct debit payments for customers over the
winter and providing extra support including launching a £4m Fuel Fund, via the independent British Gas Energy Trust
charity, to ‘target our most vulnerable customers. The company made a total contnbutlon of £8.3m (2020: £6.0m) to the
British Gas Energy Trust durmg 2021.

In addition, the Directors appreciate the importance for business strategy of the need to increase flexibility in our energy
customer billing systems. A new strategic partnership was signed with Ensek in August 2021 which will help facilitate the
transition to a lower cost to serve platform, increase the ease to which customers should be able to interact with us and allow
the launch of more innovative products to improve the customer experience.

(d) The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment

The Directors appreciate that collaboration with charities and community groups helps to create stronger communities and
provide' insights that enable the Board to understand the Group’s. impact on the community and environment, and the
consequences of its decisions in the long-term. Further information about how the Centrica Group engages with communities
and NGOs can be found on pages 30-31 and pages 56-57 of the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2021.

(e) The desirability of the company maintaining a }eputation Jfor high standards of business conduct -
The Board adheres to Centrica Group’s “Our Code” code of conduct which all Centrica Group employees are subject to
setting out the high standards and behaviours we expect from those that work for us or with us.

() The need to act fairly as between members of the company

After weighing up all relevant factors, the Directors consider which course of action best promotes the long-term success of
the Company, taking into consideration the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the Directors act fairly as between the
Company’s members. However, the Directors are not required to balance the Company’s interests with those of other -
stakeholders, and this can sometimes mean that certain stakeholder interests may not be fully aligned.

Culture
The Company’s culture is set by the Group and embedded in all we do. Further information on our culture can be found
within the Strategic Report section of the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2021. '

Ukraine conflict

The Company. is a subsidiary of the Centrica group, and as such is impacted by the energy crisis and Ukraine conflict. The
energy markets remain very volatile, but the Centrica group continues to maintain a hedging strategy aligned to the Default
Tariff price cap or to individual customer contractual requirements to minimise the exposure to market prices. The Company
does not own any businesses or operat¢ in Russia or Ukraine and so has no direct impacts_from those two countries.
Furthermore, the Company has no investments in Russian entities or bonds. “The Company is not expectmg any direct
~ material impacts but will keep monitoring the position. .

Review of the business ‘
The Company's Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Fmanma] Reporting Standard. 101: Reduced
Disclosure Framework (FRS 101).

The financial position of the Compa.ny is presented in the Statement of Financial Position on page 16. Total equlty as at 31
December 2021 was £1,961.5m (2020: £1,799.0m). The profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 was £121.5m .
(2020: £16.6m profit).
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British Gas Trading Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

British Gas residential customers numbers increased by 344,000, or 5%, over 2021. The first half saw a fall of 114,000
customers, with a significant increase in default tariff price caps resulting in increased levels of market switching. The price
comparison website market remained fiercely competitive, with some competitors continuing to price at negative gross
margins, and as a result we reduced our activity through this channel. This reduction in customer numbers was partially
offset by the impact of taking over supply for 53,000 customers from Simplicity Energy through Ofgem’s Supplier of Last
Resort (SoLR) process and the acquisition of 36,000 customers from Nabuh Energy. In the second half, we added 504,000
customers through the SoLR process as a number of competitors ceased trading. Including the impact of a small underlying
decline in Q3, total customer numbers overall increased by 458,000.

British Gas small business customers increased by 1% in 2021.

Energy Touchpoint Net Promoter Score (NPS) increased by 5 points to 14 over the year as our new operating model led to -
improved colleague émpowerment and an improved focus on resolving customer issues first time.

Call volumes and complaints increased, following a fall in 2020 during the first phase of the COVID-19 pandemic when we
had encouraged customers to interact with us online so we could prioritise calls from miore vulnerable customers. The -
onboarding of SoLR customers also increased operat10na1 pressures while customer concerns,over high energy prices

~ impacted call volumes.

In Centrica Business Solutions energy supply, which consists of medium-sized entities and Commercial and Industrial (C&T).
customers: The total amount of energy supplied in the period was 14% higher than in 2020, reflecting a combination of
recovery in energy demand dué to the reduced impact of COVID-19 restrictions, “and underlying volume growth. Customer
complaints were stable while Touchpoint NPS was positive at +21.

Principal risks and uncertainties

From the perspective of the Company, the principal risks and uncertainties are integrated with those of the Centrica plc
group (the ‘Group’) and are not managed separately. The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group, which include those
of the Company, are disclosed on pages 34-43 of the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2021, which does not form part
of this report. .

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Company are political and regulatory intervention, strategic growth, exposure to
movements in commodity prices and credit and liquidity risks, including the ability for customers to pay debts as they fall
due given wider macroeconomic conditions.

Changes in government and regulatory policy, specifically relating to the British Gas Energy markets, could further erode

..profit margins. This could occur through changes in price caps, changes made to cost recovery processes, and from
additional obligations including the introduction of capital adequacy frameworks and measures to protect consumer credit
balances and renewable obligation payments. All of these are currently under consultation or have been proposed, with the
scale and magnitude of change heightening compliance risks.

We are active in contributing our views on the development and regulation of the markets in which we operate. In relation to
the UK energy market specifically, we have been in regular discussions with government, political parties and the regulator,
Ofgem, to manage the risks of any intervention. We are committed to an open, transparent and competitive UK.energy
market that works to provide choice for consumers, whilst supporting sustainable and responsible practices. '

. Key performance mdlcators ('KPIs")

Given the nature of the business, the Company’s Drrectors are of the opinion that the KPIs necessary for an u.nderstandmg of
the development, performance and position of the Company are net assets and profit for the year.

The Directors of the Group use-a number of KPIs to monitor progress against the Group’s strategy including on customer
numbers, net promoter scores and complaints. The development, performance and position of the Group, which includes the
Company, are disclosed on pages 14-15 of the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2021, which does not form part of this
report. The results of the Company are disclosed in the Directors' Report on page 6.
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British Gas Trading Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued) |

Future developments

Owing to the high commodity environment and cost of hvmg crisis, on 25 August 2022 British Gas announced it will
contribute 10% of energy supply profits to the British Gas Energy Support Fund for the duration of the energy crisis,
backdated to the start-of 2022. The commitment intends to target help for the most financially vulnerable customers who are
struggling to pay their bills, with grants of up to £750.

This support package is offered in addition to government mechanisms aimed at providing support for rising energy prices to
energy consumers. These government mechanisms includes the Energy Bill Support Scheme (EBSS), which provides a £400
discount to domestic households over the 2022/23 winter period, and the Energy Price Guarantee (EPG). The EPG works fo
ensure that a typical household in Great Britain pays an average £2,500 a year on their energy bill, for two years from
October 2022 with a similar level of support made available for businesses until March 2023. The support offered is funded
via government rebates, but the lmpact from these schemes on customer bchavnour bad debt and on operations remain
uncertain.

Approved by the Board on 29 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

.Ruth Odih

By order of the Board for and‘on behalf of Centnca Secretanes Limited
Company Secretary ' '

_ Company registered in England and Wales, No. 03078711

_ Registered office:
Millstream

Maidenhead Road

Windsor

Berkshire

SL4 5GD

United Kingdom

Page 5



British Gas Trading Limited

Directors' Repoft for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors of the Company
The Directors of the Company, who were in ofﬁce during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were
as follows: o

R Roy

S E Mussenden (resigned 30 June 2021)

P M Simon (resigned 17 September 2021) N
J P Pikunic (resigned 8 March 2021)

M ] Bateman (resigned 18 February 2022)

G C McKenna (appointed 8 March 2021)

C L McLeod (appointed 30 June 2021)

C A N O'Kelly (appointed 17 Septembér 2021)

Results and dividends
The results of the Company are set out on page 14. The profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 is £121.5m
(2020: £16.6m). . .

The Company did not pay an interim dividend during the year (2020: £2,150.0m) and the Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend (2020: £nil). .

The financial position of the Company is presented in the Statement of Financial Position on pages 16 and 17. Total equlty at -
31 December 2021 was £1,961.5m (2020: £1,799.0m).

Charitable donations

During the year the Company made contributions of £8.3m (2020 £6.0m) to the mdependent charlty, the British Gas Energy
Trust.

Financial Risk Management

Objectives and policies :
The directors monitor financial performance and manage financial, risks to enable the Company to achieve long-term
shareholder value growth. Exposure to commodity price risk, counterparty credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal
course of the Company’s business and is managed within the Group risk management ﬁmnework An energy management
team manages energy market price and volumetric risk.

Exposure in terms of price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk

" The most significant financial risk facing the Company relates to commodity prices and volumes in particular for gas and
electricity which are influenced by external factors including weather. Commodity price risk arises as a result of contracted
or forecast sales of gas and electricity not being fully matched by the procurement contract with BGL with equivalent
volumes, time periods and pricing. The risk is primarily that market prices for commodities will move adversely between the
times that sales prices are fixed or tariffs are set and the times at which the purchase costs are fixed, thereby potentially
reducing expected margins. The Group policy is to maintain a hedging strategy aligned to the price cap pricing in
"methodology or to individual customer contractual requirements to match to the underlying profiles of our customer energy
requirements. This policy is executed by BGL and reflected in the price the Company pays BGL for the commodity under
the procurement contract.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Certain pfocurement and- sales contracts constitute derivative financial instruments. The fair values of these contracts are
subject to change resulting from changes in commodity prices, except for contracts which are indexed to the market price of
the commodity which is the subject of the contract, and for which the price is not fixed in advance of delivery. Refer to note
27 for details. -

Credlt risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability or failure to discharge its obligations under a contract.
The Company continues to be vigilant in managing counterparty risks in accordance with its financial risk management
policies. In the case of business customers, credit risk is managed by checking a company’s creditworthiness and financial
strength both before commencing to trade and during the business relationship. For residential customers, creditworthiness is
ascertained normally before commencing to trade to determine the payment mechanism required to reduce credit risk to an
acceptable level. Certain customers will only be accepted on a prepayment basis or with a security deposit. An ageing of
receivables is monitored and used to manage the exposure to credit risk associated with both business and residential
customers. In other cases, credit risk is monitored and managed by grouping customers accordmg to method of payment or
profile.

Cash forecasts identifying the liquidity requirements of the Company are produced frequently and reviewed regularly.
Liquidity risk is managed through funding arrangements with Group undertakings. ’

Employees

Safety remains a priority of the Group and the focus in 2021 was to reinforce the strong safety culture and, alongside
physical health, we were mindful of the impact of COVID-19 and changing business practices on mental health. We helped
provide peace of mind by ensuring everyone had the flexibility to adjust working hours to' accommodate caring
responsibilities and temporarily amended policies to ensure COVID-related absences wouldn’t impact pay. There were other
health and safety campaigns and initiatives supported including introducing mental health first aiders designed to keep our
people and our customers safe, which continues to be a priority in 2022.

The Company’s all-employee share schemes are 'a long established and successful part of our total reward package,
encouraging the involvement of UK employees in the Company’s performance through employee share ownership. We offer
a tax-advantaged Share Incentive Plan (SIP), with good levels of take-up across the Company. From 2022 all eligible
employees will have the opportunity to participate in a Profit Share award.

The Company is committed to' and has an active equal opportunities policy which includes, but is not limited to, recruitment

and selection, training, career development, performance reviews and promotion to retirement. Qur culture is to create an_
environment free from discrimination, harassment and victimisation. Our policies are in place to ensure everyone receives

equal treatment regardless of gender, identity, race, ethnic or national origin, dlsablllty, age, marital status, sexual orientation

or religion or any other characteristic protected by applicable laws. .

We have created channels for colleagues to voice concerns confidentially, through a Speak Up support service, a confidential
and anonymous helpline operated by an independent company. All decisions relating to employment practices will be
objective, free from bias and based solely upon work criteria and individual merit.

It is our policy that people with disabilities should have full and fair consideration for all vacancies. During the year, we

. continued to demonstrate our commitment to interviewing those people with disabilities who fulfil the minimum criteria, and
endeavour to retain employees in the workforce if they become disabled during employment.
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British Gas Trading Limited

’

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Employee engagement

The Company remains committed to employee involvement throughout the business. It seeks to create an environment
where each employee can reach their full potential and be at their best, and we can retain and develop the best talent to
continue to deliver for our stakeholders. During 2021, over 100 engagement surveys including company-wide ‘Our Vorce
quarterly surveys were conducted to understand and respond to colléague ‘pain points’.

Employees are kept well informed of the performance and strategy of the Group through personal briefings, regular meetings
with senior managemerit, emails, information screens, broadcasts at key points in the year and a Group-wide intranet. The
Company seeks to create an environment in which employees are fully engaged with business objectives. Further
information about the survey and the improvement in colleague engagement can be found on pages 4, 15 and 26 to 27 and 36
of the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2021. "

Going concern . _
The Directors have received confirmation that provided the Company remains part of the Group, Centrica plc will support
the Company for at least one year after the financial statements were authorised for issue and that amounts owed to Group
undertakings will not be required to be repaid for the foreseeable future unless sufficient financial resources and facilities are
available to the Company.

In the context of the continuing economic uncertainty caused by commodity price volatility and energy market uncertainty,
the Directors have updated their Group going concern assessment as at 30 June 2022 to factor in the Group’s updated
principal risks, strategy and forecasts, together with modelling further downside sensitivities. The going concern assessment
has considered the financial impact on the Group’s credit and liquidity headroom of certain stress events impacting the
Group’s key risks over a 12-18 month horizon. The Group’s forecasts show that the Group will maintain sufficient
headroom, underpinned by unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, net of bank overdrafts, of ¢.£3.4 billion as at 30 June
2022, and c.£2.9 billion of undrawn committed facilities, which remain committed until at least 2024.

The Centrica Group interim results were released on 28th July 2022. These demonstrated a resilient financial performance
despite a difficult energy supply situation, increases in wholesale gas price, and the ongoing challenges caused by the
pandemic. The Group’s balance sheet continues to be much stronger than 2020, with a positive cash position of £0.3 billion
compared to 2020 when the Group had net debt of £3.0 billion and an overall adjusted operating profit of £1,342m at half
year. .

"On the basis of the ‘enquiries made, and the fact that Centrica plc, the ultimate parent company, has confirmed it will
continue to support the Company, the Directors have concluded that the Company should be able to meet its liabilities as
they fall due for the foreseeable future, and therefore the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Future developments
Future developments are discussed in the Strategic Report on page 5.

Directors' and officers' hablllty

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been purchased by the ultimate parent company, Centrica plc, and was in
place throughout the yéar and continues to-remain in force. The insurance does not provide cover in the event that the
Director is proved to have acted fraudulently

Qualifying third-party indemnity prov1510ns (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) were in force during the’
year ended 31 December 2021 and continue to remain in force.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Non-adjusting events after the financial year

On 2 March 2022, in responsé to the Russian invasion of Ukraine, Centrica plc announced its intention to exit gas supply
agreements with Russian businesses. The Company’s trading exposures, managed via BGL, are being continuously
monitored, although the biggest risk is the impact on global commodity prices. The impact of the Ukraine conflict on the
Company is discussed further in the Strategic report on page 3.

UK natural gas and power prices have continued to increase throughout 2022, with prices reaching historical highs in Q3
2022, due to European supply disruptions for gas following the Ukrainian conflict outlined above. This has led to a number
of suppliers ceasing to trade and Ofgem appointing Suppliers of Last Resort (SoLR) to supply the customers of the failed
energy suppliers. The Company has so far been appointed as SoLR to one failed energy suppliers in 2022, which follows
eight appointments during 2021. . e

The high and volatile wholesale commodity prices w11] continue to expose the Company to increased risk associated with the
hedged positions, weather, counterparty credit risk as well as exposure to increased industry-levy claims. The Company
recognises that the ongoing uncertainty whilst these conditions prevail may increase the levels of commodity costs in the
future, but is unable to quantify the financial impact with certainty and will take mitigating actions where possible to
minimise the impact on the Company.

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities
- The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repon and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable
UK law and regulatlons

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 'Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and-
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
* make judgements and accountmg estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

.+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures dlsclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the Company will
continue in busmess :

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company. and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements cormply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps-for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website which, in the absence of a website for British Gas Trading Limited, we refer to the Centrica plc Group
website for this responsibility. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that so far as they are aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and that they have taken all steps that
they ought to have taken as Directors to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information. This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.
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British Gas Trading Limited -
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Aﬁdltors
In accordance with Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and Deloitte LLP
will therefore contmue in office.

Apprdved by the Board on 29 September 2022 and siéned on its behalf by:

Ruth Odlh

By order of the Board for and on behalf of Centrica Secretaries Limited
Company Secretary

Company registered in England and Wales, No 03078711
Registered office:

Millstream

 Maidenhead Road’

Windsor.

Berkshire

SL4 5GD . :

United Kingdom R

Page 10



British Gas Trading Limited
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of British Gas Trading Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of British Gas Trading Limited (the 'Company"):

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

« have been pro;')erly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

: . . . . )
‘We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

» the Income Statement;

« the Statemgnt of Comprehensive Income;
« the Sttltement of Financial Position;

« the Statement of Change’s"in Equity; and
« the related notes 1 to 30.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reportmg Standard 101 'Reduccd Disclosure Framework' (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the-financial .
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit ewdence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basw for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. '

Our evaluation of the directors’ _assessment of the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accountmg included:

«  consideration of the confirmation by Centnca plc that it will continue to support the Company for at least one year after
the financial statements were authorised for issue; and

+ consideration of the ability of Centrica plc to contmue to support the Company based on the financing facilities, and
headroom thereon, available throughout the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period
of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. S

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. .

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Qur
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherw1se explicitly stated
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of British Gas Trading Limited
(continued)

‘Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so..
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an'audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements. .

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located ‘on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with

our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent

" to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. '

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the documentation of the
policies and procedures.relating to fraud and compliance with laws and.regulations that has been established by the
Company’s ultimate parent. We also enquired of management and internal audit about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the ]egal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified the key
laws and regulations that:

* had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnanc1al staternents These included
the UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and .

-+ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the company ’s
ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists regardmg the opportunities and
incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identifi ed ‘the greatest potential for £raud in the following areas, and our specific
procedures performed to address these are described below:

». Credit losses on financial assets (“bad debt provisions™”) given the inherent judgement in the current economic
environment: our audit approach for bad debt provisions was a combination of data analytics substantive ‘audit
procedures and tests of internal control; and

¢ The valuation of complex derivatives given the inherent risk of bias in the valuations calculated: our audit approach for
the valuation of complex derivatives was a combination of tests of internal control, assessment of management’s internal
valuation specialists and the use of a financial instrument specialist within the audit team to assist with substantive audit
procedures.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of British Gas Tradmg Limited
.(continued)

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. In -addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and. other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the busmess rationale of any SIgmﬂcant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

« reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements; .

. performmg analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonships that may indicate risks of material
_misstatement due to fraud; .

* enquiring of management, internal audit and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims,
and instances of non-compliance with-laws and regulations; and

» reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing internal audit reports.

- Report on other legal and regulatoFy requirements

.Opinions on other rnatters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

*  the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its envxronment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or . . 4

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
.+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report -

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
" Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
‘accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.,

Nicola Barker (ACA) (Senior Statutory Audltor) R ’ )
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP ’
Statutory Auditor

London

United Kingdom

’

Date: .......29......... September 2022
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British Gas Trading Limited

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

1

2021 2020

Note : £m ) £m
Revenue : : ‘ . 4 » 9,032.0 . 82859
.Cdst of sales : o A 6 (8,350.1) (7,422.3)
Gross profit : L o 681.9 . 863.6
Operating costs 6 '(820.1) - (904.4)
Exceptional costs - termination benefits 8 - : ('42‘4)
Exceptional items - restructuring credit/(costs) 8 10.5 (65.4)
Other income 5 - B 6.9
Operating loss C S . : (127.7) (141.7)
Finance income - ) . 9 ’ . 301.0 © 2342
Finance costs .9 (50.9) . (98.4)-
Net finance income _ - ' ' 250.1 135.8
Profit/(loss) before taxation . . 122.4 ) 59 -
Tax credit/(charge) on profit/loss A 12 . (0.9) . 225
Profit for the year . ‘ - © 1215 16.6

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form an‘integral part of these financial éwtements:
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British Gas Trading Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2021-

2021 2020
Note £m : £fm
Profit for the year . . 121.5 . 16.6
Items that will not be reclassified to the Income Statement A
Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 22 . 71.6 ) (114.1)
Taxation on net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension o
schemes : ) . ) a3n ' 29.5
Current tax charge on defined benefit pension schemes 03 . -
Deferred tax charge.on defined benefit pension schemes 0.3) ' . -
Change in tax rate on defined benefit pension schemes - (12.9) -~ -
, ’ ' 450 (84.6)
. Other compi'ehensive income/(expen’s,e) . 450 (84.6)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year o 166.5 ~ (68.0)

The notes on pages 19 t6 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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British Gas Tfading Limited

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Trade and other receivables
Retirement benefit assets
Delji\"ative financial instruments

Current assets

Trade and other receivables” |
Inventories '
Derivative financial instruments
Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables .
Derivative financial instruments

Provisions for other liabilities and charges’

Borrowings

" Net current. assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Trade and other payables

Derivative financial instruments
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Total liabilities .

Net assets

Equity .

Share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings

Share-based payments reserve
Actuarial gains and losses reserve

Total equity

Note

13
14

16
22

17

18
17

12

20
27
21
19

12
20
27
21

23
23
23

23 .

23

2021 2020
£fm £fm
73 19.9-
289.9 381.0
193.4 84.6
213.7 52.0
1,590.9 492.7
2,295.2 1,030.2
4,922.0 3,835.4
5.6 10.2
7393.5 1,050.3
152.9 30.6
3.1 6.0
12,477.1 049325 "
14,7723 5,962.7
(3,453.8) (2,420.8)
(7,617.3) (1,078.1)
(11:8) (30.2)
(14.9) - (65.8)
(11,097.8) (3,594.9)
1,379.3 . 1,337.6
3,674.5 2,367.8
(56.9) ' (32.2)
(22.9) 4.7
(1,630.2) (501.4)
(3.0) (10.5)
(1,713.0) (568.8)
(12,810.8) (4,163.7)
1,961.5 1,799.0
~ 800.0 800.0
4472 4472
1,002.7 881.2
79.2 83,2
(367.6) (412.6)
1,961.5 1,799.0

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021 (continued)

The financial statements on pages 14 to 47 were approved and "authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

C L McLeo
Director

Company number 03078711 ‘ S ) .

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Statement of Changes in thity for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 .

At 1 January 2021
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Exercise of awards

Value of shares provided
Taxation on share options

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive expense

Total comprehensive expense
Dividends

Exercise of awards

Value of shares provided

At 31 December 2020

Actuarial gains

Share based and losses Retained
Share capit_al Share premium  payments reserve reserve earnings Total equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
800.0 4472 832 (412.6) 881.2 1,799.0
- - - - 1215 121.5
- - - 45.0 - 45.0
- - - 45.0 1215 166.5
- - (7.1) - - AN
- - 24 - - 24
- - 0.7 - - 0.7
800.0 447.2 79.2 (367.6) 1,002.7 1,961.5
Actuarial gains
Share based and losses Retained
Share capital Share premium  payments reserve reserve earnings Total equity
£m © £m C£m £m’ £m £m
800.0 4472 88.0 (328.0) 3,014.6 4,021.8
- - - - 16.6 16.6
- - - (84.6) - (84.6)
- - - (84.6) 16.6 (68.0)
- - . - -(2,150.0) (2,150.0)
- - (11.9) - .0 (11.9)
- - 7.1 - - 7.1
800.0 4472 i 832 (412.6) 881.2 1,799.0

The notes on pages 19 to 48 form ai

Page 18

n integral part of these financial statements.



British Gas Trading Limited

\

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

1 General information

British Gas 'frading Limited (the 'Company') is a private company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act, 2006 and is registered in England and Wales. '

The address of its registered office and principal place of business is:
Millstream

Maidenhead Road

Windsor

Berkshire

United Kingdom

SL4 5GD

The nature of the Company’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 5.

2 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation :

The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (‘FRS 101°). In preparing these financial statements the Company applies the recognition,
measurement and disclosure requirements of UK adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (‘Adopted IFRSs’),
but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where
advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

. The Company financial statements are presented in pounds sterling which is the functional currency of ‘the Company.

On 31 December 2013, as part of a process to increase clarity and transparency in financial reporting, British Gas Trading
Limited sold the trade, net assets and certain unrealised commodity contracts (via back-to-back contractual arrangements)
associated with the Centrica Energy business to a new legal entity within the Group: Centrica Energy Marketing Limited
(CEML). The Company also sold the trade, net assets. and unrealised commodity contracts (via back-to-back contractual
arrangements) associated with procuring gas and power for our residential and business customers to a new specialist energy
procurement legal entity within the Group: British Gas Limited (BGL), formerly British Gas Energy Procurement Limited
(BGEPL). These disposals were completed on 31 December 2013. On 2 January 2015, continuing the process to increase
clarity and transparency in financial reporting, the Company sold its remaining beneficial interest in certain contracts via
back-to-back agreements to CEML. As a result of this sale, certain commitments, previously held by the Company, were
also transferred. .

Changes in accounting policy

From 1 January 2021, the following standards and amendments are effective in the Company’s Financial Statements:

* Amendments to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4: 'Insurance Contracts' - deferral of IFRS 9;and .
«  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2.
None of these changes or amendments had any material impact on the Company’s financial étatements.

Summary of disclosure exemptions :
In these financial statements, as a qualifying entity the Company has applied the exemptlons available under FRS 101 in
respect of the followmg disclosures:

 _ the requirements of IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’;

= the statement of compliance with Adopted IFRSs;

"« the effécts of new but not yet effective IFRSs; ’

« ' prior year reconciliations for property; plant and equipment and intangible assets;

« the prior year reconciliations in the number of shares outstanding at the. begmmng and at the end of the year for share
capital; .
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British Gas Trading Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued) .

« disclosures in respect of related party transactions with wholly-owned sgbsidiaries in a group;
+ disclosures in respect of the c'om'pens'ation of key management personnel; and

« disclosures in respect of capital management.

"As the consolidated financial statements of the Centrica plc group (the ‘Group’), which are available from its registered
-office, include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of
the followmg disclosures: :

+  certain disclosures required by IAS 36 ‘Impamnent of Assets’ in respect of the impairment of goodwill and indefinite
life intangible assets;

-« certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ and the disc]osures required by IFRS 7 ‘Financial
' Instruments: Disclosures’ have not been provided. '

Measurement convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for: derivative financial mstruments financial
inStrumernts desngnated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition and the Company’s share of the assets of the
Group’s defined benefit pension schemes that have been measured at fair values; the Company’s share of the liabilities of the
Group’s defined benefit pension schemes that have been measured using the projected unit credit valuation method; and the
carrying value of recognised assets and liabilities qualifying as hedged items in fair value hedges that have been adjusted
from cost by the changeés in the fair values attributable to the risks that are being hedged.

Departures from requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and their financial impact
The Company has used a true and fair override in respect of the non-amortisation of goodwill.

The UK Companies Act 2006 requires goodwill to be reduced by provisions for depreciation on a systematic basis over a
period chosen by the Directors, its useful economic life. However, under IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ goodwill is not
amortised. Consequently, the Company does not amortise goodwill, but reviews it for impairment on an annual basis or
whenever there are indicators of impairment. The Company is therefore invoking a ‘true and fair view override’ to overcome
the prohibition on the non-amortisation of goodwill in the Companies Act 2006. The Company is not able to reliably
estimate the.impact on the financial statements of the true and fair override on the basis that the useful life of goodwill
cannot be predicted with a satisfactory level of reliability, nor can the pattern in which goodwill diminishes be known.

Going concern

The Directors have received confirmation that provided the Company remhains part of the Group, Centrica plc w111 support
the Company for at least one year after the financial statements were authorised for issue and that amounts owed to Group
undertakings will not be required to be repaid for the foreseeable future unless sufficient financial resources and faciljties are
available to the Company. : '

In the context of the continuing economic uncertainty caused by commodity price volatility and energy market uncertainty,
the Directors have updated their Group going concern assessment as at 30 June 2022 to factor in-the Group’s updated
principal risks, strategy and forecasts, together with modelling further downside sensitivities. The going concern assessment
has considered the financial impact on the Group’s credit and liquidity headroom of certain stress events impacting the
Group’s key risks over a 12-18 month horizon. The Group’s forecasts show that the Group will maintain sufficient
headroom, underpinned by unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, net of bank overdrafts, of c.£3.4 billion as at 30 June
2022, and c.£2.9 billion of undrawn committed facilities, which remain committed until at least 2024.

The Centrica Group interim-results were released on 28th July 2022. These demonstrated. a resilient financial performance
despite a difficult energy supply situation, increases in wholesale gas price, and the ongoing challenges caused by the .
pandemic. The Group’s balance sheet continues to be much stronger than 2020, with a positive cash position of £0.3 billion
compared to 2020 when the Group had net debt of £3.0 billion and an overall adjusted operating profit of £1,342m at half
year.

On the basis of the enqulrles made, and the fact that Centrica plc, the ultlmate parent company, has confirmed it will
continue to support the Company, the Directors have concluded that the Company should be able to meet‘its liabilities as
they fall due for the foreseeable future, and therefore the financial statements have been prepared 6n a going concern basis. -
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British Gas-Trading Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

A

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Exemption from preparing group accounts *

The financial statements contain information about the-Company as an individual company and do not contain consolidated
financial information as the parent of a group. The Company is exempt under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from
the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full
consolidation in the consolidated financial statements of its ultimate controlling company, Centrica plc.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Revenue recognition . :

The Company supplies gas and electricity to residential and business customers in the UK. The majority of contractual
energy supply arrangements have no fixed duration, require no minimum consumption by the customer and can be
terminated by either party at any time, although some fixed term contracts may have a termination fee. The Company has
determined that no enforceable rights and obligations exist at inception of the contract and arise only once the cooling off

_period is complete and the Group is the legal supplier of energy to the customer. The performance obligation is the supply of

energy over the contractual term; the units of supply represent a series of distinct goods that are substantially the same with
the pattern of transfer to the customer. The performance obligation is considered to be satisfied as the customer consumes
based on the units of energy delivered. This is the point at which revenue is recognised. In respect of energy supply
contracts, the Company considers that it has the right to consideration from the customer for an amount that corresponds
directly with the value delivered to the customer through their consumption. It is the judgement of the Company that the
customer consumes energy as the Company supplies and, as a result, the Company recognises revenue for the amount which
the entity has a right to invoice. The Company's assessment of the amount that it has a right to invoice includes an
assessment of energy supplied to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the year end (known as unread
revenue). Unread gas and electricity comprises both billed and unbilled revenue and is estimated through the billing systems,
using historical consumption patterns, on a customer-by-customer basis, taking into account weather patterns, load forecasts
and the differences between actual meter readings being returned and system estimates. Actual meter readings continue to be
compared to system estimiates between the balance sheet date and the finalisation of the accounts.

Cost of Sales

Energy supply includes the cost of gas and electricity produced and purchased during the year taking into account the
industry reconciliation process for total gas and total electricity usage by supplier, and related transportation, distribution and
bought-in materials and services. ' :

Exceptional items , ]
Exceptional items are those items that, in the judgement of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their
nature, size or incidence. To ensure the business performance reflects the underlying results of the Company, these
exceptional items are disclosed separately in the income statement. Items which may be considered exceptional in nature
include disposals of businesses, business restructurings, significant onerous contract charges and asset
write-downs/impairments. . :

COVID-19 Support Schemes

As a result of the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, a number of government programmes have been put into
place to support businesses and consumers. Examples of such initiatives include the UK’s Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme. In accounting for the impacts of these measures, the Company has applied IAS 20: ‘Government grants’. Grants are
recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them, and that
the grant will be received. Government grants are recognised in the Income Statement on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the related costs that they are intended to compensate are recognised. Grants related to income are reported as Other .
Income in the Income Statement. Government grants received in advance of the Company meeting the criteria for
recognition in the Income Statement.are deferred and presented within Trade and other payables. There is no impact of this
policy o priot periods.

During the year the Company recognised an amount totalling £nil (2020 £6.9 million) receivable under the UK
Government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. This has been presented as Other Income in the Income Statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Finance income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrymg value.

Employee share schemes
The Centrica plc group, to which the Company belongs, operates a number of employee share schemes, detalled in the
Remuneration Report on pages 66-75 and in note S2 to the Group financial statements, under which it makes equity-settled
share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of
grant (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions). The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis in the Income Statement together with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period,
- based on the Centrica_plc group's estimate of the number of awards that will vest, and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.

Falr value is measured using methods appropriate to each of the different schemes detailed in note S2 of the Group ﬁnancxal
statements.

Dividend income -
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Financing costs

Financing costs that arise in connection with the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
- and subsequently amortised in line with the depreciation of the related asset. Financing costs are capitalised from the time of
- acquisition or from the beginning of construction or production until the point at which the qualifying asset is ready for use.

Where a specific financing arrangement is in place, the specific borrowing rate for that arrangement is applied. For

non-specific financing' arrangements, a financing rate representative of the weighted average borrowing rate is used.’

Financing costs not arising in connection with the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are expensed.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are, on initial recognition, recorded i in the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company
at the rates prevailing at the reporting date, and associated gains and losses are recognised in the Income Statement for the
year, except when deferred in other comprehensive income asqualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
Income Statement within ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
"the Income Statement in the respective financial line item to which they relate. -

Non-monetary. items that are measured at historical cost in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company are
translated using the exchange rate’ prevailing at the dates of the initial transaction and are not retranslated. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
measured.

\
Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporatlon tax, is provided at amounts expected to be pald (or recovered) using the tax rates and’
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in equity.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences identified at the reporting date, except to the extent that the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill (if impairment of goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes) or
‘the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss. Temporary differences are differences between the
carrying amount of the Company’s assets and liabilities and their tax base.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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British Gas Trading Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued) |

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary differences can be utilised:

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Lntanglble assets include contractual
customer relationships, brands, application software and renewable obligation certificates, the accounting policies for which
are dealt with separately below. For purchased application software, for example investments in customer relationship
management and billing systems, cost includes contractors’ charges, materials, directly attributable labour and directly
attributable overheads.

Capitalisation begins when expenditure for the asset is being incurred and activities necessary to prepare the asset for use are
in progress. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for use are
complete. Amortisation commences at the point of commercial deployment. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. ’

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset could be impaired, either individually or at the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) level. Such intangibles are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continués to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is made on a prospective basis.

Renewable obligation certificates (ROCs)

A liability for the renewables obligation is recognised based on the level of electricity supplled to customers, and is
calculated in accordance with percentages set by the UK Government and the renewable obligation certificate buyout price
for that period. ROCs are acquired by’ BGL on behalf of the Company. These are transferred at cost to the Company at the
end of the compliance period whereupon the intangible asset is surrendered and the liability is utilised to reflect the
consumption of economic benefits. As a result no amortisation is recorded during the period. Any recycling benefit related to
the submission of ROCs is recognised in the Income Statement when received.

Amortisation
Intangible assets subject to amortisation are provided so as to write off the cost, Iess any estimated residual value, over their
expected useful economic life as follows:

Asset class Amortisation method and rate

Contractual customer relationships ’ Straight line, up to 20 years
Application software L Straight line, up to 15 years

Property, plant and equipment (‘PP&E’)

PP&E is included in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, less accumulated. depreciation and any provisions for
impairment. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost and any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset into operation. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of
any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

Subsequent expenditure in respect of items of PP&E, such as the replacement of major parts, major inspections or overhauls,
are capitalised as part of the cost of the related asset where it is probable that future economic benefits will arise as a result of
the expenditure and the cost can be reliably measured. All other subsequent expendlture including the costs of day-to-day
servicing, repairs and maintenance, is expensed as incurred. :
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‘Not‘es to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued) ‘ : : ' N

Depreciation of PP&E !
The depreciation periods for the principal categories of assets are as follows:

Asset class : : Depreciation method and rate
Plant } - . Straight line, between 5 and 20 years
Equipment and vehicles . Straight line, between 3 and 10 years

The carrying values of PP&E are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Residual values and useful hves are reassessed
annually and if necessary changes are accounted for prospectively

Investments in subsidiaries

Fixed asset investments i subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less where appropriate, provisions for impairment. *

Inventories .
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value after allowance for redundant and slow-moving
items.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructwe) as a result of a past event, that
can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material. Where discounting is used, the increase in the prov151on due to the passage of time
is recognised in the Income Statement within interest expense.

Onerous contract provisions are recognised where the unavondable costs of meetmg the obligations under a contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received under it. : .

"Contracts to purchase or sell energy are reviewed on a portfolio basis given the fungible nature of energy, ‘whereby it is
assumed that the highest priced purchase contract supplies the highest priced retail sales contract and the lowest priced sales
contract is supplied by the lowest priced purchase contract.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Company’s employees participate in a number of the Group s defined beneﬁt pension schemes. The total Group cost of
providing benefits under defined benefit schemes is determined separately for each of the Group’s schemes using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are recogmsed in the period in which they occur.
The key assumptions used for the actuarial valuation are based on the Group’s best estimate of the variables that will
determine the ultimate cost of providing post-employment benefits, on which further detail i$ provided in note 22 to the
Group financial statements. The Company’s share of the total Group surplus or deficit at the end of the reporting period for
each scheme is calculated in proportion to the Company’s share of ordinary employer contributions into that scheme during
the year; ordinary employer contributions are determined by the pensionable pay of the Company’s employees within the
scheme and the cash contribution rates set by the schemeé trustees. Current service cost is calculated with reference to the
pensionable pay of the Company’s employees. The Company’s share of tlie total Group interest on scheme liabilities,
expected return on scheme assets and actuarial gains or losses is calculated in proportion to ordinary employer contributions
in the prior accounting period. Changes in the surplus or deficit arising as a result of the changes in the Company’s share of
total ordinary employer contributions are also treated as actuarial gains or losses.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised in the Company’s Income Statement as they fall
due. .
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment -

The carrying amounis of the Company’s non—ﬁnancnal assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
" each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU?”) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the CGU). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is
allocated to CGUs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds 'its estimated recoverable amount. '
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill shall not be reversed in a
subsequent period. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to detetmine the recoverable amount. . ,

The Company provides for impairments of financial assets when there is objective evidence of impairment as a-result of
events that impact the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets.

Financial assets and liabilities .
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the Company no
longer has the rights to cash flows, the risks and rewards of ownership or control of the asset. Financial liabilities are
de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. .

- Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which is usually the original invoice amount, and are subsequently
held at amortised cost using the effective interest method less an allowance for expected credit losses.

- Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value, which is usually the original invoice amount and are subsequently he]d
at amortised cost using the effective interest method (although, in practice, the discount is often immaterial). If payment is
due within one year or less, payables are classified-as current liabilities. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

- Share capital .

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources
received or receivable. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds received. Own equity instruments that are re-acquired (treasury or own shares) are deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the Company’s Income Statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments. . S
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and current balances with banks and similar institutions, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and have an original
maturity of three months or less. '

- Loans and other borrowings

All interest-bearing and interest-free loans and other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except when they are the hedged item in an effective fair value-hedge relationship where the
carrying value is also adjusted to reflect the fair value movements associated with the hedged risks. Such fair value
movements are recognised in the Company’s Income Statement. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
issue costs, discount or premium, when applicable.

- Derivative financial instruments
- See 'Key sources of estimation uncertainty' (note 3) for the detailed accounting pollcy applied by the Company for denvatlve
financial mstruments in these Fmancxal Statements. :

- Hedge accounting - cash flow hedges :

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or
liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument
is recognised directly in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the Income
Statement.

When the forecast transaction subsequently results i the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from the hedging reserve and is included in the initial carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability. If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset
or a financial liability, the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are reclassified into the Income
Statement in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss e.g. when
interest income or expense is recognised.

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered above, the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and
recognised.in the Income Statement in the same period or penods during Wthh the hedged forecast transaction affects profit
or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in
equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no
longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the Income
Statement immediately. .

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent frorh other sources. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. - -

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that penod or in the period of revision
.and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies .

The following are critical accounting judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most 51gmﬁcant effect on the amounts recogmsed
in the financial statements.
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3 Critical accouriting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Energy Company Obligation (‘ECO’)

The Energy Company Obligation (‘ECO’) order requires UK-licensed energy suppliers to improve the energy efficiency of
domestic households. Targets are set in proportion to the size of historic customer bases. ECO phase 1 and ECO phase 2 had
delivery dates of 31 March 2015 and 30 September 2018 (extended from 31 March 2017), respectively.

The ECO phase 3 scheme ended on-the 31 March 2022 with Ofgem due to make a final compliance determination by the

30th September 2022. Although the ECO 3 programme included certain sub-obligations, there were no interim targets and,

consistent with previous years, the Company continued to judge that it was not legally obligated by the order until delivery

date. Accordingly, the costs of delivery were recognised as incurred, when cash had been spent or unilateral commitments
- made, resulting in obligations that could not be avoided.

Metermg contracts .

In previous years, as part of the smart meter roll-out, the Company renewed meter rental arrangements with third parties. The
" Company assessed that these were not leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 because at inception of the contract there were no
specified assets, the Company did not have the right to physically or operationally control.the smart meters and other parties
took more than an insignificant amount of the output from the assets. This assessment was grandfathered on adoption of
IFRS 16.

A reassessment of the contracts was performed in accordance with IFRS 16, following renegotiations of the meter rental
arrangements during 2019 and 2020. On the basis that the asset has a predetermined use and the Company neither has the
right to operate the asset, nor was involved in its design, the conclusion that these arrangements are not leases continues to’
be appropriate. There has been no change to this assessment during 2021.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Revenue recognition - unread gas and electricity meters

Revenue for energy supply activities includes an assessment of energy supplied to customers between the date of the last
meter reading and the year end (known as unread revenue). Unread gas and electricity comprises both billed and unbilled
revenue. It is estimated through the billing systems, using historical consumption patterns, on a customer by customer basis,
taking into account weather patterns, load forecasts and the differences between actual meter readings being returned and
system estimates. Actual meter readings continue to be compared to system estimates between the balance sheet date and the
finalisation of the accounts.

-An assessment is also made of any factors that are likely to materially affect the ultimate economic benefits which will flow

to the Company, including bill cancellation and re-bill rates. Estimated revenue is restricted to the amount the Company
expects to be entitled to in exchange for energy supplied. The judgements applied, and the assumptions underpinning these
judgements, are considered to be appropriate. However, a change in these assumptions would have an impact on the amount
of revenue recognised. The adjustments for imbalance at 31 December 2021 are not significant. However, changes resulting
from these management estimates can be material with adjustments of up to £30 million having been made in the last few
years.
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Industry reconciliation procedures - cost of sales '

Industry reconciliation procedures are required as differences arise between.the estimated quantity of gas and electricity the
Company deems to have supplied and billed customers, and the estimated quantity industry system operators deem the
individual suppliers, including the Company, to have supplied to customers. The difference in deemed supply is referred to
as imbalance. The reconciliation procedures can result in either a higher or lower value of industry deemed supply than has
been estimated as. being supplied to customers by the Company, but in practice tends to result in a higher value of industry
deemed supply. The Company reviews the difference to ascertain whether there is evidence that its estimate of amounts .
supplied to customers is inaccurate or whether the difference arises from other causes. The Company’s share of the resulting
imbalance is included within commodity costs charged to cost of sales. Management estimates the level of recovery of
imbalance -which will be achleved either through subsequent customer billing or through developing industry settlement
procedures.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company (BGTL) routinely enters into sale and purchase transactions for physical delivery of gas, power and oil.
Simultaneously, the Company enters into back-to-back contractual arrangements associated with the Energy Marketing and
Trading business with Centrica Energy Marketing Limited (‘CEML'), a Group company. The Company also enters into
back-to-back contractual arrangements associatéd with procuring gas and power for residential and business customers with
British Gas Limited ('BGL'), also a Group company. The back-to-back arrangements entered into by BGTL see the-
beneficial interest of all underlying contracts transferred to CEML and BGL. CEML and BGL thus assume the risks and
rewards associated with these contracts.

The purchase and sales contracts for the physical delivery of gas, power and oil are within the scope of IFRS 9 due to the
fact that the original contracts entered into by BGTL and the related back-to-back arrangements constitutes a practice of
taking delivery and selling in a short span of time. Such contracts are accounted for as derivatives under IFRS 9 and are
recognised in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Due to the beneficial interest contracts also being
in the scope of IFRS 9, and matching the underlying derivative contracts, this has the effect of grossing-up the Statement of
Financial Position for the Company. .

BGTL has entered into an agreement with BGL in which BGL agreed to:source commodities as requested by BGTL, the
price for which is determined by the back-to-back contracts entered into by BGL. This separate contract has been deemed to
be an own-use contract for the Company since it only pays for commodities delivered and will only call on commodity
purchases to meet its downstream demand. BGL is considered to be a principal in the transaction as it assumes the risk and
rewards of balancing the purchase and sales contracts to meet the commodity needs of the Company.

The Company uses a range of derivatives to hedge exposures to financial risks, such as foreign exchange and energy price
risks, arising in the normal course of business. The use of derivative financial instruments is governed by the Group’s
policies. Further detail on the Group’s risk management policies is included within the Annual Report and Accounts 2021 of
the ultimate controllmg party, Centrica plc, on pages 38 to 43 and in note S3.

The accounting treatment: for derivatives is also dependent on whether they are designated as hedges in a hedge accounting
relationship. A derivative instrument qualifies for hedge accounting when it alters the risk profile of an underlying exposuré
of the Company in line with the Company’s risk management policies and is in accordance with established guidelines,
which require the hedging relationship to be documented at its inception, ensure that the derivative is highly effective in
achieving its objective, and require that its effectiveness can be reliably measured. The Company also holds derivatives
which are not designated as hedges and are held for trading.

All derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative is entered into and are re-measured to fair
value at each reporting date. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Derivative assets and derivative liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis only when both a legal
right of set-off exists and the intention to net settle the derivative contracts is present. . -
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3 Critical accdunting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The Company enters into certain energy derivative contracts covering periods for which observable market data does not
exist. The fair value of such derivatives is estimated by reference in part to published price quotations from active markets,
to the extent that such observable market data exists, and in part by using valuation techniques, whose inputs include data
which is not based on or derived from observable markets. Where the fair value at initial recognition for such contracts
differs from the transaction price, a fair value gain or fair value loss will arise. This is referred to as a day-one gain or
day-one loss. Such gains and losses are deferred (not recognised) @nd amortised to the Income Statement based on volumes
purchased or delivered over the contractual period until such time- observable market data becomes available. When
observable market data becomes available, any remaining deferred day-one gains or losses are recognised within the Income
Statement. Recognition of the gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value depends on the purpose for issuing or -
holding the derivative. For derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value are taken directly to the Income Statement and are included within gross profit or interest income and interest
expense. .

" Derivatives entered into for speculative energy trading purposes are classified as a current asset or liability. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the hedged item 1s
more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the maturlty of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

Embedded derivatives: derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts andthe host contracts are
not carried at fair value, with gains or losses reported -in the income statement. The closely-related nature of embedded
derivatives is reassessed when there is a change in the terms of the contract which significantly modifies the future cdsh
flows under the contract. Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, and provided that the embedded
derivative significantly modifies the cash flows under the contract, the option to fair value the entire contract may be taken
and the contract will be recogriised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Income Statement.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value on business energy sales contracts.derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are taken directly to the Income Statement as revenue for the year.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit schemes is determined separately for each of the Group’s schemcs
under the projected unit credit-actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in
which they occur. The key assumptions used for the actuarial valuation are based on the Company’s best estimate of the
variables that will determine the ultimate cost of providing post-employment benefits.

Further detail is provided in note 22 to the Financial Statements.

Credit provisions for trade and other receivables = -

" The provision. for credit losses for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables is based on an expected credit loss
model that calculates the expected loss applicable to the receivable: balance over its lifetime. A default rate is calculated
according to historical loss experience and applied to trade receivables with similar characteristics, including consideration
of the nature of the customer and, where relevant, the sector in which they operate, the payment method selected and the
timeliness of the payment based on historical trends. The characteristics used to determine the groupings of receivables are
considered to be the factors that have the greatest impact on the likelihood of default. The rate of default increases once the
balance is 30 days past due and subsequently in monthly increments. Balances are written off when recoverability is assessed
as being remote. The impairment charge in trade receivables is stated net of creditors for the release of specific provisions
made in previous years, which are no longer required. The impact on billed receivables/operating proﬁt from 1 percentage
point (increase)/decrease in provision.coverage is £13m.
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4 Revenue
The analysis of the Company's revenue for the year ffom continuing operations is as follows: ' . i
' - 2021 2020

. . P £m _ £m

Energy.supply to residential customers . ' ‘ 6,759.3 6,382.2
Energy supply to business customers ’ ) 2,272.7 -1,903.7
9,032.0 8,285.9

All revenue arose from activities in the United ngdom

© Revenue from energy supply to business customers contains unrealised mark to market losses of £226 7m (2020: £63.0m
losses)

The Company applies the praétical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 and therefore does not disclose information
related to the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations on the basis that the Group recogmses
revenue from the satisfaction of the performance obligation in accordance with Paragraph B16, as descnbed in note 2.

‘5 Other operating income

' The analysis of the Company's other operating income for the year is as follows:

2021 ’ 2020
£m £fm
Cost recovery via Coronavirus government support programmes : .- ) 6.9

COVID-19 Support Schemes - \
- During 2021, the Company recognised an amount totalling £nil (2020:£6.9 mllllon) receivable under the UK Government s
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. This has been presented as Other Income in'the Income Statement.

6  Analysis of costs by nature

2021 2020
Costof  Operating Cost of ©  Operating .
sales costs  Total costs sales costs  Total costs
] ‘ £m . £m " £fm £m - £m £m
Transportation, distribution ) ' - . .
and metering costs (2,925.4) - (2,925.4) (2,740.3) : - (2,740.3)
Commodity costs excluding ' ' A
environmental costs : (3,953.4) - (3,953.4) (3,228.7) - - (3,228.7)
Depreciation, amortisation, ) ' )
impairment and wrlte-downs - (116.9) © (116.9) - (124.6) (124.6)
Employee costs L . (81D (191.6) (273.3) (89.9) (227.4) (317.3)
Impairment of trade :
receivables - (103.0) (103.0) - (179.1) . (179.1)
Environmental and other costs (1,389.6) (408.6) (1,798.2) ~ . (1,363.4) (3733) - (1,736.7)
(8,350.1) (820.1) (9,170.2) (7,422.3) (904.4) (8,326.7) .

Total costs by nature
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7 Employees' costs

The disclosures in this note reflect the costs and number of all Centrica plc Group employees that work in the British Gas
~ Trading Limited (BGTL') business regardless of whether they have a contract of employment with BGTL or another Group
company. Certain of these employees provide services to certain fellow subsidiaries for which those fellow subsidiaries are-
recharged. The staff costs of these employees are included in the disclosures below and a separate recharge included in other
operating costs. The Directors believe that the disclosures given on this bams are the fairest representatlon of the cost and -
" number of people working in the BGTL business. :

The aggregate employee costs (including Directors' remuneration) were as follows: .
2021 © 2020

. . . £m S £m
Wages and salaries @137 - . (2405)
Social security costs . . . : (22.9) (25.3)
Pension and other post-employment benefits C (34.5) ' (45.6)
Share-based payment expenses . ’ (2.2) - : (5.9) -
(273.3) (317.3)

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year was 6,052 (2020
7,456). All employees were administrative and sales staff, employed in the United Kingdom.

' 8. ' Exceptional items
The following exceptional items were recognised in arriving at operating loss for the reporting year: 3
’ 2021 2020

) £m £m
Exceptional costs - termination benefits o o B - (42.4)
Exceptional items - restructuring credit/(costs) © 10.5 . (65.4)
105 . (107.8)

N pensnon strain charge had been reflected in relation to redundancies arising as a result of Company’s restructuring
programme.

% The net restructuring credit relates to the reversal of a prior year provision predominantly related to the Group’s
restructuring programme. The Group’s restructuring programme is now substantially complete and therefore we do
not expect to recognise any further exceptional restructuring costs/credits in relation to this programme.
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9 Net finance income

Finance income

2021 - 2020 -
. £fm . 7 £m

Interest i income from amounts owed by Group undena.kmgs 929 < 215.8
Interest income on assets under lease ’ ‘ 2.3 10.4
Dividend income . : 200.0 - -
Other finance income . 5.8 8.0
Total finance income . . : . 301.0 2342
Finance cost ! o

2021 2020
Interest on amounts owed to Group undertakings ) 47.7) (55.4)
Contingent rents paid in respect of leases ’ (154) - (20.9)
Interest expense on lease liabilities ' 0.5) 22)
Interest expense on bank overdrafts and borrowings ' (1.0) (0.9)
Net foreign exchange losses on financing transactions o) 13.7 (19.0)
Total finance costs : » ] (50.9) ‘ (98.4)
Net finance income ' , : 250.1 135.8

{

On 16 December 2021 the Company recelvcd a dividend of £200.0m (2020: £nil) from it's 100% owned sub51dlary British
‘ Gas Limited (formerly British Gas Energy Procurement Limited).

10 Directors' remuneration

The Directors were remunerated as employees of Centrica plc Group and did not receive any remuneration, from any source,
. for their services.as Directors of the. Company during the current or preceding financial year. Accordingly, no details in
respect of their emoluments'have therefore been included in these financial statements.

11 Auditor's remuneration

The Company paia the following amounts to its auditors in respect of the audit of the Financial Statements provided to the
Company.

2021 2020
£m £fm
Audit fees : . . 0.1) - (0.1)

Auditor’s remuneration relates to fees for the audit of the financial statements of the Company.

The Cdmpany has taken advantage of the exemption not to disclose amounts paid for non-audit services as these are
disclosed in the Group financial statements of its ultimate parent, Centrica plc.
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12 Income tax

Tax crédited/(chargcd) in the Income Stater'nent'

Current taxation
UK corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%)
‘UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods

Deferred taxation ) ,
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Changes in tax rates

Adjustment in respect of prior period

Total deferred taxation

Taxation on (profit)/loss

2021 2020
£m £fm
5.7 27.2

0.6 1.5
(5.1) 28.7
4.7 10.0
(0.3) (14.6)
(0.2) (1.6)
42 (6.2)
(0.9) 22.5

The UK rate of corporation tax for the year to 31 December 2021 was 19% (2020: 19%). The corporation tax was due to
increase to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023. However, on 23 September 2022 the Government announced that the rate of
" corporation tax will remain at 19%. At 31 December 2021, the deferred tax balances included in these financial statements
are based on' the enacted increased rate of corporation tax having regard to their reversal profiles. When the legislation
changing the rate of corporation tax from 25% to 19% is substantively enacted the deferred tax balances will be lower by

£13.0m.

. The differences between the taxes shown above and the amounts calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation

tax to the profit/(loss) before tax are reconciled below:

’

lsroﬁt/(loss) before tax

Tax on profit/(loss) at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%)
Dectease (increase) in current tax from adjustment for prior periods

Decrease from effect of revenues exempt from taxation

Increase from effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit (tax
loss) . .- _

Decrease (increase) arising from group relief tax reconciliation

Decrease from transfer pricing adjustments

Deferred tax expense relating to changes in tax rates or laws

Other tax effects for reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense

Total tax (charge)/credit
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£fm £fm
122.4 " (5.9)
(23.3) 1.1

0.4 (.1
38.0 0.1
1.2) 0.9)

15.7) 33.7

0.8 3.7
0.3) (14.6)

0.4 ' (0.5)
0.9) 225
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12 Income tax (continued) '

" Deferred tax .
" The movements in respect of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities that occurred during the financial year are as
follows: ) . .

Accelerated tax

depreciation . Other items Pensions Tetal
, £m o fme £m. ‘ £m

1 January 2021 ' (2.6) (20.8) : (8.8) (32.2)
Credited/(charged) to the Income Statement 50 3.8 ° (7.4) 14 -
Credited to other comprehensive income’ . T ' - (26.6) (26.6)
Prior period adjustments _ 0.7 0.1 - 04 0.2)
Recognised in equity - 0.7 - 0.7
31 December 2021 ) 1.7, - (162) (424) . (56.9)

Accelerated tax

depreciation Other items . Pensions ' Total
£m " £fm £m ' £m
1 January 2020 _ - (71.4) a7.7) (30.4) : (55.5)
Credited/(charged) to the Income Statement 4.8 @3.1) .9 6.2)
Credited to other comiprehensive income ) - - 29.5 29.5
31 December 2020 (2.6) - " (20.8) . (8.8) (32.2)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where. there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following is
an analysis of the gross deferred tax balances and associated offsetting balances for financial reporting purposes:

2021 - A , 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets - Liabilities
) £m £m £m £m
Gross deferred tax balances e
crystallising after one year - . (56.9) - (32.2)
- (56.9) ) - (32.2)

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity of £12.3m (2020: £29.5m) relates to the Company's share of actuarial losses in the
year on the remeasurement of Group pension scheme assets and liabilities.
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Cost )
At 1 January 2021

Disposals and surrenders

At 31 December 2021 ’

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1 January 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals and surrenders
At 31 December 2021
Net book value

1}

At 31 December 2021
At 31 December 2020

14 Intangible assets

* Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021

Additions and capitalised borrowing

costs
Disposals and surrenders

At 31 December 2021

Amortisation

At 1 January 2021
Amortisation

Disposalé and surrenders
Impairment

At 31 December 2021
'Carrying amount

At 31 Decen:_lber 2021
At 31 December 2020

Plant,
equipment and
vehicles
£m
1445
(38.4)
106.1
(124.4)
(6.3)
31.9
' (98.8)
7.3
199
Customer
relationships Application K
and brands software Goodwill Total
£fm £m £fm £m
54.2 "1,123.2 33.2 1,210.6
9.8 9.9 - 197
- (205.8) - (205.8)
-64.0 927.3 33.2 1,024.5
43.4) (786.2) - (829.6)
(6.6) o (100.8) - (107.4)
- 203.7 - 203.7
- (1.3) - 3y -
{50.0) (684.6) - (734.6)
14.0 242.7 332 289.9
10.8 . . 332 13810

337.0
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14 Intangible assets (continued)

Indwndually material intangible assets :
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to individual CGUs or
groups of CGUs as follows:

1
)

Year of ‘ . Carrying amount
: acquisition CGU " £m
Trade and assets of Enron Direct 2001 CBS & BG Energy S 111
' ' CBS & BG
. : . 2005 EnergyUK
Trade and assets of Electricity Direct (UK) Limited Business 11.6
‘ECL Investments Limited and ECL Contracts Limited 2011 BG Energy 44
Hillserve Limited ' 2011 BG Energy - . 5.2

British Gas Direct Employment Limited - 2012 " BG Energy . 0.9
' ' ' 33.2

So&ware assets include the customer relationship management system for British Gas Energy. The net book value of these -
assets is £68m and the remaining useful economic life over which the asset will be amortised is 5 years. '

15 Investments
The Cdmpany retains 100 ordinary shares of £1 in British Gas X Limited representing 100% ownership.
The Company retains a £1 ordinary share in British Gas Limited, a 100% subsidiary undertaking in this year and last.

The Company also continues to hold a £100 investment in each of Finance Scotland CEPS Limited Partnership and Finance
Scotland CPP Limited Partnership, both registered in Scotland. :

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

" Name of - o and voting rights
subsidiary Principal activity Registered office Holding held -
, , 2021 2020

British Gas Energy supply Millstream, Maidenhead Road, Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited* Windsor, SL4 5GD, United shares

T " Kingdom
British Gas X Energy Supply Millstream, Maidenhead Road, Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited* , ’ Windsor, SL4 5GD, United .shares -

* Kingdom

* indicates direct investment of the Company
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16 Trade and other receivables

2021 ' - 2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current
£m £m £m £m-

Trade receivables 1,298.2 o - 1,1513 - . i -

Provision for impairment of trade . . ‘

receivables (566.3) - (527.2) -

Net trade recetvables ’ 7319 . - 624.1 -

-Amounts owed by Group undertakings 3,147.3 T - 2,556.2 -
Lease receivables owed by Group

undertakings . - - : 60.1 -

. Accrued energy income o 732.3 - 4674 - -

Prepayments ’ 65.6 - . 562 ' -

Other receivables ‘ 214.5 172.7 417 58.8

Contract assets . 30.4 20.7 : 29.7 25.8

4,922.0 193.4 3,835.4 ) 84.6

The amounts owed by Group undertakings have been presented on a net basis as there is a legal right of offset, and the intent
is ‘to settle amounts on a net basis. Included within the net amounts owed by Group undertakings disclosed above is
. £2,609.6m (2020: £2,711.7m) due from Centrica plc that bears interest at a quarterly rate determined by Group Treasury and
linked to the Group cost of funds. The quarterly rates ranged between 3.61% and 4.23% per annum during 2021 (2020:
4.42% and 4.73%). The other net amounts owed by Group undertakings are interest-free. All amounts owed.by Group
undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.

Included within the other receivables balance as at 31 December 2021 are Supplier of Last Resort (SoLR) levy claims
amounts totalling £234m, with £124m classified as current and £110m classified as non-current (2020: £nil).

Following the unprecedented rise in commodity prices in the second half of 2021, a number of UK energy suppliers were
unable to continue trading.and the Group was appointed as the Supplier of Last Resort for the customers of eight suppliers.
Under Ofgem’s licence conditions, the Company is entitled to make a Last Resort Supplier Payment claim for the shortfall
between costs reasonably incurred in supplying gas and electricity to premises under the Last Resort Supply Direction, and
the charges recovered from customers (which are limited by the tariff cap). '

The Company submitted an initial claim, covering a six month period from the date of appointment, and received
confirmation of Ofgem’s acceptance in December 2021. The claim primarily covers incremental commodity costs, incurred
as a result of procuring gas and electricity to supply affected customers. The Company will submit a second claim to Ofgem
by Autumn 2022, recognising both actual commodity costs incurred, and additional costs which were not included in the
initial claim. This includes the recovery of customer credit balances, where the Company has not waived the right to do so. .
The value recognised for the receivable at 31 December 2021 is £234 million, offsetting losses incurred and customer credit
balances recognised.
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Finance lease receivables -
Minimum lease .
. . payments Finance charges Present value
2021 _ - ’ £m £m £m

Not later than one year ' : E- - -
. ~

Minimum lease

. . ) payments Finance charges °  Present value
2020 ’ > £m £m £m
Not later than one year . 62.4 - (23) . 60.1

The present values of future finance lease payments are analysed as follows:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
) fm - . £fm

Current assets . . o - 60.1

17 Derivative financial instruments - Assets
2021 ] 2020

Current Non-current Current Non-current
_ £m £fm £m . £fm

Derivative financial instruments 7,393.5 1,590.9 1,050.3 ©492.7

Note 27 provides further detail on the fair value of financial instruments.

Derivative financial assets include amounts due from Group undertakings of £5,699.0m (20207 £1,042.0m). The prior year
comparative has been restated from £598.0m to £1,042.0m to include all amounts due from Group companies.

18 Inventories

- 2021 © 2020

£m £m

Raw materials and consumables ' ' . " 5.6 10.2

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of inventories and their carrying amounts.

19 Loans and borrowings

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
B £m £fm
Current bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings
Bank overdrafts ' _ (14.9) (19.2) -~
Lease liabilities ' ] : - (46.6)
(14.9) (65.8)
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19 Loans and borrowings (continued)

Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and attract variable interest of base rate plus 1.00% or base rate plus 1.25%,

depending upon the bank.

20 Trade and other payébles
© 2021

2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current *
: £m £m £m ‘ £m

-Trade payables : (138.0) - (151.3) -
Transportation accruals (229.5) - (234.5) -
Accrued expenses and deferred ’
income o (588.0) 22.9) (535.1) (24.7)
Amounts owed to Group - .
undertakings : (1,877.8) - - (944.7) -
Social security and other taxes T (§6.1) - (27.8) -
Other payables © ' C o (584.4) - (527.4) -

(3,453.8) (22.9) (2,420.8) (24.7)

@ Other payables includes a liability for renewable obligation certificates of £533.6m (2020 £460. 7m)

@ Amounts owed to Group undertakings have been presented on a net basis as there is a legal right of offset and the mtent is
to settle amounts on a net basis. Included within the net amounts owed to Group undertakings is £876.6m (2020: £843.6m)
that bears interest at a quarterly rate determined by Group Treasury and linked to the Group cost of funds. The quarterly rates
ranged between 3.61% and 4.23% per annum during 2021 (2020: 4.42% and 4.73%). The other net amounts owed to Group
undertakings are interest-free. All amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand. "
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21 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Onerous
Restructuring ) contracts  Other provisions Total
. ’ £m ' £fm - . £m £m.
At 1 January 2021 (28.5) ’ . (0.3) (11.9) (40.7)
Charged to the Income Statement 0.7) . - 2.3) . 3.0
Unused provision reversed to the
Income Statement 5.8 - 02" 6.0
Provisions used . 17.9 - - 5.0 22.9
At 31 December 2021 (5.5 (0.3) ' 9.0) (14.8)
Non-current liabilities , RE)) ' - (1.5) (3.0)
, ‘Current liabilities 4.0) . i (0.3) (7.5) (11.8)
Restructuring

The provision predominantly re]ates to costs reducnon programmes. Utilisation is expected within one year, except for some
penswn strams

Onerous sales contracts . :
The onerous contract provision reflects the construction services business expecting to incur penalties for having exited sales
contracts early, as a result of the decision to close the business. Utilisation is expected within one year.

Other provnsnons

The provisions at 31 December 2021 includes £1.9m in relation to employer's national insurance charges expected to arise at
exercise dates on employee share schemes (2020: £1. 7m) £3.3m in relation to smart metermg costs (2020 £6.9m), £3.1m in
relation to a construction costs dispute (2020: £2.4m) and £0.7m in relation to other minor provisions (2020: £0.9m). The
expected utilisation profile is as follows: £7.5m within one year and £1.5m within one to five years. '

. 22 Pension and other scheines

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Company’s employees participate in the following Group defined benefit pension schemes: Centrica Pension Plan
(CPP), Centrica Pension Scheme (CPS), Centrica Engineers Pension Scheme (CEPS) and Centrica Unfunded Pension
Scheme (CUPS). Its employees also participate in the defined contribution section of the Centrica Pension Scheme.
Information on these schemes is provided in note 22 to the Group financial statements.

The CEPS, CPP and CPS form the significant majority of the Group’s and Company's defined benefit obligation and are
referred to below in the Group financial statements as the ‘Registered Pension Schemes’.

Accounting assumptions, risks and sensitivity analysis

The accounting assumptions, risks and sensitivity analysns for the Registered Pension Schemes are provided in-note 22 to the,
Group financial statements.
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22 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
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2021 2020 .
~Assets’  Liabilities Total Assets Liabilities Total
: £m £m - £m o E&m £m £m
1 January ‘ . 2,719.0 (2,667.0) 52.0 2,594.0  (2,406.3) 187.7
Items included in the Income - o
- Statement:
Current service cost - (11.4) (11.4) - (10.5) (10.5). .
Contributions by employer in respect i
of employee salary sacrifice ) . )
arrangements 2.9 (2.9). - 3.7 N € W) -
Past service cost/(credit) : - - - - - -
" Termination benefits - - 9.3 9.3 - (42.5) (42.5)
Interest income/(expense) 44.6 (38.8) 5.8 59.6 (51.6) 8.0
. Other movements: : '
Return on plan assets, excluding i . :
interest income . ~ 48.7 - 487 118.9 - 118.9
Re-measurement gains/(losses) . - 23.0 23.0 .- (233.0) (233.0)
Employer contributions . -86.3 - 86.3 23.4 - 23.4
" Plan participants contributions 0.1 ©.1) - 02) . 0.2 -
Benefits paid from schemes r (79.5) 79.5 - (80.4) 80.4 -
Transfers from provisions for other ' ’ .
liabilities and charges . - - - - - -
31 December T 2,822.1 (2,608.4) 2137 2,719.0 ~ (2,667.0) 52.0
Presented in the Statement of Financial Position as:
' 2021 2020
£fm £fm
Retirement benefit assets 213.7 52.0
213.7 52.0
Analysis of the actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in reserves
2021 2020
. : . £m £m
Actuarial loss (actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets) J -
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 487 118.9
Experience loss arising on the scheme liabilities (52.8) (10.2)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the schemes' liabilities 75.8 (222.8)
Cumulative actuarial losses recognised in reserves at 1 January, before ‘ :
adjustment for taxation (506.8) (392.7)
Cumulative actuarial losses recognised in reserves at 31 December, before
adjustment for taxation . (435.1) (506.8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements fbr the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

22 _ Pension and other schemes (continued)

Pensmns scheme contributions

Note 22 to the Group financial statements provides details of the triennial review based on the position at 31 March 2018 in’
respect of the UK Registered Pension Schemes and the asset-backed contribution arrangements. Under 1AS .19: 'Employee
benefits (revised 2011)', the Company's contribution and trustee interest in the Scottish Limited Partnerships are recognised
as'scheme assets. -

The Company estimates that it w1ll pay £6m of employer contributions during 2022 at an average rate of 19% of pensnonable
pay together with contributions via the salary sacrifice arrangement of £3m

Although the Group has established a new funding arrangement in the year based on the position as at 31 March 2018 it
should-be noted that the market rates, from which the discount rate is derived, have continued to decline in the subsequent
period. The Group continues to monitor its pension liabilities on an ongoing basis, including assessing various scenarios that.
may arise and their potential implications for the business. .

Pension scheme assets
The major categories of scheme assets are as follows:

2021 2020

Quotéd Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted ' Total
o , v £m £m £m £m £fm £m

Equities ' . : T 19.9 462.0 481.9 ' 18.9 396.0 4149
Corporate bondsA : © 02,3926 31.0 2,423.6 -2,649.1 - 2,649.1
High-yield debt 2,719.9 1,1969 3,916.8 2,069.4 " 1,285.5  3,354.9
Liability matching assets o 1,963.0 - 1,3556 3,318.6 2,1919 ° . 1,069.0 3,260.9
Property ’ - 439.2 439.2 . - " 3518 351.8
Cash pending investment , -85.5 - 85.5 ' 38.0 - 380
Group pension scheme assets @ 7,180.9 3,484.7 10,6656 ~ _ 6,967.3 3,1023 10,069.6
Company share of the above : .

(£'000) . - - - 1,881.5 837.5 2,719.0

9 Total pension scheme assets-for the UK pension schemes.

Defined contribution pension scherhe ¢

The total cost charged to Income Statement of £23.0m (2020: £24 3m) represents contributions payable to these schemes by
. the Company at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

23 Capital and reserves
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

2021 . 2020
No. - £ - . No. £

Ordinary shares of £1 each 800,000,100 800,000,100 800,000,100 - 800,000,100

The shares have attached to them full voting, dividend and capital distribution (mcludmg 'on winding up) rights; they donot
confer any rights of redemptlon

Authorised share capital
The Company has no authorised share capital, as permltted by the provnsxons of the Companies Act 2006.
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23 Capital and reserves (continued)

" Share premium )
Consideration transferred in excess of the nominal value of ordinary shares is allocated to share premium.

Actuarial gains and losses reserve
Cumulative actuarial losses on the defined benefit scheme are recognised in reserves.

Retained earnings
The balance classified as retamed earnings includes the profits and losses- realised by the Company in previous periods that
were not distributed to the shareholders of the Company at the reporting date.

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve reflects the obligation to deliver shares to employees under the existing share schemes in
return for.services provided to the Company. .

. 24 Share-based payments

Employee share. schemes are designed to encourage participants to align their objectives with those of shareholders. The
Company participates in six employee share schemes which gave rise to a charge of £2.2m (2020: £5.9m). The fair value of
employee share options is the market value of the shares at the award date. The major schemes are described below. -

Conditional Share Incentive Plan (CSIP) .

Awards under CSIP. (previously known as On Track Incentive Plan) are available to senior executives, senior and middle
management. The number of shares awarded is dependent on annual targets for individual targets and business unit financial
performance. These shares vest subject to continued employment within the Group in two stages: half after two years, the
other half after three years. Leaving prior to the vesting date will normally mean forfeiting rights to the invested share
awards. The fair value of the awards is the market price of the shares on the date of the award.

Sharesave .

Under Sharesave, the Group Board may grant options over shares in Cenmca plc to all UK-based employees of the Group

To date, the Board has approved the grant of options with a fixed exercise price equal to 80% of the average market price of
. the shares for the three days pnor to invitation which is three to four weeks prior to the grant date. Employees pay a fixed
amount from salary into a savmgs account each month, and may elect to save over three and/or five years. At the end of the
savings period, employees have six months in which to exercise their options using the funds saved. If employees decide not
to exercise their options, they may withdraw the funds saved, and the options expire six months after maturity. Exercise of
options is subject to continued employment within the Group except where permitted by the rules of the scheme.  *

The fair value of employee share options is measured using the Black-Scholes model.

Restricted Share Scheme (RSS) :

Participation in RSS is determined on a case by case basis, at the dlscretlon of management, and in 2020 an award was given
to employees who otherwise would have been eligible for a cash bonus under the CSIP scheme, known as the Retention
Share Award. ) '

These shares vest subject to continued employment within the Group in two stages: half after two years, the other half after

three years. Leaving prior to the vesting date will normally mean forfeiting rights to the invested share awards.
The fair value of the awards is the market price of the shares on the date of the award.
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25 Di_vidends

> - .31 December 31 December

' 2021 2020
' £m £m
Interim dividend of £Nil (2020 - £2.69) per ordinary share’ . ' - 5 © 2,150

During the year there was an interim dividend paid of £nil (2020: £2,150m) to its immediate parent undertaking, GB Gas
Holdmgs Limited. The Dlrectors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2020: £nil).

26 Commitments and contingencies

" The Company  routinely enters into sale and purchase transactions for physical delivery of gas, power and oil.
Simultaneously, the Company enters into back-to-back contractual arrangements associated with the Energy Marketing and .
Trading business with Centrica Energy Marketing Limited (CEML), a Group company. The Company also enters into
back-to-back contractual arrangements associated with procuring gas and power for residential and business customers with
British Gas Limited (BGL), also a Group company. The back-to-back arrangements entered into by BGTL see the beneficial
interest of all underlying contracts transferred to CEML and BGL. CEML and BGL thus assume the risks and rewards
associated with these contracts. It is noted that these contracts are transferred via back-to-back agreements and therefore
where such back-to-back agreements exist no commitments have been disclosed in these financial statements.

The Company also signed an agreement with BGL in which BGL agreed to source commodities as required by the Company
the price for which is determined by ‘the back-to-back contracts entered into by BGL. A fixed fee of £42m per annum
" (indexed) is payable by the Company under the terms of this contract to reflect the activities and elements of risk taken on by
BGL. The agreement remains operational until both parties agree to terminate the agreement. No commitments associated
with this contract have been included in the disclosures below.

Contractual commitments in relation to other contracts .
As at 31 December 2021, the Company has the following commitments, based on minimum contractual quantities (per
contractual terms entered into), commodity purchase prices and foreign exchange rates as at the reporting date.

2021 : 2020
: . fm- £fm
LNG capacity * : : 3769 426.5
Transportation capacity : 916 103.6 .
Energy Company Obligation : : : 415 . 246
Qutsourcing of services g : 40.5 338 -
Smart meter arrangement with MAPs : . 95.2 123.2
Other commitments . . : : 36.5 25.0
. 6822 736.7

On 31 December 2013, as part of a process to increase clarity and transparency in financial reporting, the Company sold its
beneficial interest in its commodity purchase contracts to two newly formed entities within the Group: BGL and CEML.
Concurrently, the Company received a guarantee from GB Gas Holdings Limited in relation to all obligations in connection
with these contracts transferred to BGL and CEML.
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27 Fair value of financial instruments

The. Company routinely enters into sale and purchase transactions for. physical delivery of gas, power and oil.
Simultaneously, the Company enters into back-to-back contractual arrangements associated with the Energy Marketing and
Trading business with CEML, a Group company. The Company also enters into back-to-back contractual arrangements
associated with procuring gas and power for residential and business customers with BGL, also'a Group company. The
back-to-back arrangements entered into by BGTL see the beneficial interest of all underlying contracts transferred to CEML
and BGL. CEML and BGL thus assume the risks and rewards associated wnth these contracts.

The purchase and sales contracts for the physical delivery of gas, power and oil are within the scope of IFRS 9 due to the

_fact that the original contracts entered into by BGTL and the related back-to-back arrangements constitutes a-practice of
taking delivery and selling in a short space of time. Such contracts are accounted for as derivatives under IFRS 9 and are
recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position at fair value. Due to the beneficial interest contracts.also being
in the scope of IFRS 9, and matching the underlying derivative contracts, this has the effect of grossing-up the Statement of
Financial Position for the Company. '

BGTL has entered into an agreement with BGL in which BGL agreed to source commodities as requested by BGTL, the
price for which is determined by the back-to-back contracts entered into by BGL. This separate contract has been deemed to
be an own-use contract for the Company since it only pays for commodities delivered and will only call on commodity
purchases to meet its downstream demand. BGL is considered to be a principal in the transaction as it assumes the risk and
rewards of balancing the purchase and sales contracts to meet the commodity needs of the Company.

. See 'Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ (note 3) for the detailed accountmg policy apphed by BGTL for derivative -
financial mstruments in these financial statements.

Determination of fair values

The Company’s policy for the classification and valuation of financial instruments is disclosed in the accounting policies
section of these financial statements. The fair value hierarchy levels are determined in accordance with IFRS 13 and are .
consistent with those used by its ultimate controlling party being Centrica plc.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company adopts Group internal policies for
determining fair value, including methodologies used to establish valuation adjustments required for credit risk.

Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured and held at fair value are classified into one of three categones known as
hierarchy levels, which are defined according to the inputs used to measure fair value as follows:

'

«  Level 1: Fair value is determined using observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets
and liabilities.

» Level 2: Fair value is determined using sfgniﬁcant inputs that may be directly observable inputs or unobservable inputs
that are corroborated by market data. -

« Level 3: Fair value is determined using significant unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data and may
be used with internally developed methodologies that result in management's best estimate of fair value. -
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27 Fair value of financial instr ! (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Derivative financial assets - held for trading under IFRS
9

Energy derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives

Derivative financial assets - in hedge accounting
relationships .
Foreign exchange derivatives -

Total financial assets at fair value

" Derivative financial liabilities - held for trading under
IFRS 9 :

Energy derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives

Derivative financial liabilities - in hedge accounting
relationships

Foreign exchange derivatives
Total financial liabilities at fair value

Net financial instruments at fair value

31 December 2021 -31 December 2020
Fair value and Fair value and .
carrying value Level 2 Level 3 carrying value Level 2 Level 3
£m £m £m - £m £m * £m
8,970.0 6,809.7 -2,160.3 1,525.7 962.1 563.6
144 144 - 16.1 16.1 -
- - - 12 12 N
8,984.4 . 6,824.1 2,160.3 1,543.0 9794 . 563.6
(9,233.1) (7,072.9) .(2,160.2) (1,562.2) (998.6) (563.6)'
(14.49) (14.4) - (16.1) (16.1) .
- - - (12) (12 -
(9,247.5) (7,087.3) (2,160.2) (1,579.5) (1,015.9) (563.6)
(263.1) (2632) 0.1 (36.5) (36.5) -
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. 27 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial assets include amounts due from Group undertakings of £5,699.0m (2020: £1,042.0m). The prior year
comparative has been restated from £598.0m to £1,042.0m to include all amounts due from Group companies. Derivative
financial liabilities include amounts due to Group undertakings of £8,942.0m (2020: £1,245.0m). The prior year comparative
has been restated from £943.9m to £1,245.0m to include all amounts due to Group companies.

28 Related party transactions

The Company has taken advahtage of the exemption within FRS 101 from disclosure of transactions with other
wholly-owned Centrica plc Group companies and key management personnel compensation. .

Summary of transactions with other related parties

During the year; the Company entered into arm’s length transactions with the following related parties:

Nuclear associates

EDF Energy Nuclear Generation Limited
Ldke Acquisitions Limited '

These transactions and associated balaﬁces are as follows: .
2021 © 2020

Associates Associates

_ . £m : £m
Purchase of power : ' (300.0) (501.0)
Amounts owed to related parties (159.8) (169.1)
(459.8) (670.1)

No provision for bad or doubtful debts owed by related parties was required (2020: £nil).

29 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate pafent undertaking is GB Gas Holdings Limited, a company registered in England and Wales.

The ultimate parent undertaking and the ultimate controlling party is Centrica plc, a company regist.ered in England and'
Wales, which is the only company to include these financial statements in its consolidated financial statements. Copies of the’

Centrica plc consolidated financial statements may be obtained from www.centrica.com.

The registered address of Centrica plc is Millstream, Maidenhead Road, Windsor, Berkshire SL4 5GD, United Kingdom.-
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30 Non-adjusting events after the financial period

On 2 March 2022, in response to the Russian invasion of Ukraine, Centrica plc announced its intention to exit gas supply
agreements with Russian businesses. The Company’s trading exposures, managed via BGL, are being continuously
monitored, although the biggest risk is the impact on global commodity prices. The impact of the Ukraine conflict on the
Company is discussed further in the Strategic report on page 3. . :

UK natural gas and power prices have continued to increase throughout 2022, with prices reaching historical highs in August
2022, due to European supply disruptions for gas following the Ukrainian conflict outlined above. This has led to a number
of suppliers ceasing to trade and Ofgem appointing Suppliers of Last Resort (SoLR) to supply the customers of the failed
energy suppliers. The Company has so far been appointed as SoLR to one failed energy suppliers in 2022, which follows
eight appointments during 2021.

The high and volatile wholesale commodity prices will continue to expose the Company to increased risk associated with the,
hedged positions, weather, counterparty credit risk as well as exposure to increased industry levy claims. The Company
recognises that the ongoing uncertainty whilst these conditions prevail may increase the levels of commodity costs in the
future, but is unable.to quantify thé financial impact with certainty and will take mitigating actions where possible to
minimise the impact on the Company. '
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